
Democratic Services Contact Officer: Laurence Damary-Homan 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Thursday 23 November 2023 
 
To: Chairman – Councillor Jose Hales 
 Vice-Chairman – Councillor Sue Ellington 
 All Members of the Grants Advisory Committee - Councillors Bill Handley, 

Sunita Hansraj and Peter Sandford 
Quorum: 3 
 
Substitutes: Councillors Heather Williams, Graham Cone, Mark Howell, Bunty Waters, 

Dr. Shrobona Bhattacharya, Richard Stobart, Peter McDonald and 
Dr. Martin Cahn 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Grants Advisory Committee, which will 
be held in the Council Chamber - South Cambs Hall at South Cambridgeshire Hall on 
Friday, 1 December 2023 at 10.00 a.m. 
 
Members are respectfully reminded that when substituting on committees, 
subcommittees, and outside or joint bodies, Democratic Services must be advised of 
the substitution in advance of the meeting.  It is not possible to accept a substitute 
once the meeting has started.  Council Standing Order 4.3 refers. 
 
Yours faithfully 
Liz Watts 
Chief Executive 
 

The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the community, 
access to its agendas and minutes.  We try to take all circumstances into account 

but, if you have any specific needs, please let us know, and we will do what we 
can to help you. 

 

 
Agenda 

 Pages 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
3. Minutes of Previous Meeting  3 - 4 
 To authorise the Chair to sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 

October 2023 as a correct record. 
 

   
4. Grants to the Voluntary Sector - Service Support Grants: 6 

Month Progress Report 
 5 - 22 

 

 

South Cambridgeshire Hall 

Cambourne Business Park 

Cambourne 

Cambridge 

CB23 6EA 

t: 01954 713000 

f: 01954 713149 

www.scambs.gov.uk 



 
5. Community Chest: Funding Applications  23 - 36 
 
6. Date of next meeting   
 To inform the Committee that the next meeting will be held on 

Thursday 25 January 2024. 
 

   

 

  
 GUIDANCE FOR VISITORS TO SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE 

HALL 
  

 

 
Exclusion Of Press And Public 

 
The law allows Councils to consider a limited range of issues in private session without members of the Press and 
public being present.  Typically, such issues relate to personal details, financial and business affairs, legal privilege 
and so on.  In every case, the public interest in excluding the Press and Public from the meeting room must outweigh 
the public interest in having the information disclosed to them.  The following statement will be proposed, seconded 
and voted upon.   
 
"I propose that the Press and public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the following item 
number(s) ….. in accordance with Section 100(A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that, if 
present, there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph(s) ….. of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act.” 
 
If exempt (confidential) information has been provided as part of the agenda, the Press and public will not be able to 
view it.  There will be an explanation on the website however as to why the information is exempt.   

Notes 
 
(1) Some development control matters in this Agenda where the periods of consultation and representation 

may not have quite expired are reported to Committee to save time in the decision making process. 
Decisions on these applications will only be made at the end of the consultation periods after taking into 
account all material representations made within the full consultation period. The final decisions may be 
delegated to the Corporate Manager (Planning and Sustainable Communities). 

 

(2) The Council considers every planning application on its merits and in the context of national, regional and 
local planning policy. As part of the Council's customer service standards, Councillors and officers aim to 
put customers first, deliver outstanding service and provide easy access to services and information. At all 
times, we will treat customers with respect and will be polite, patient and honest. The Council is also 
committed to treat everyone fairly and justly, and to promote equality. This applies to all residents and 
customers, planning applicants and those people against whom the Council is taking, or proposing to take, 
planning enforcement action.  More details can be found on the Council's website under 'Council and 
Democracy'. 



South Cambridgeshire District Council 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Grants Advisory Committee held on 
Thursday, 26 October 2023 at 10.00 a.m. 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Sue Ellington – Chair 
   
 
Councillors: Bill Handley Sunita Hansraj 

 Peter Sandford Dr. Martin Cahn 

 
Officers in attendance for all or part of the meeting: 
  Laurence Damary-Homan (Democratic Services Officer), Emma Dyer 

(Development Officer [Communities Team]) and Jane Mountain (Project 
Officer [Communities Team]). 

 
Councillor John Williams was in attendance remotely. 
 
1. Apologies for Absence 
 
 Apologies for Absence were received from Councillor Jose Hales and Councillor Dr Martin 

Cahn was present as a substitute. With the Absence of the usual Chair, Councillor Jose 
Hales, the Vice-Chair, Councillor Sue Ellington, assumed the role of Chair for the meeting. 

  
2. Declarations of Interest 
 
 There were no Declarations of Interest. 

  
3. Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
 By affirmation, the Committee authorised the Chair to sign the Minutes of the meeting held 

on 28 September 2023 as a correct record. 

  
4. Community Chest: Funding Applications 
 
 The Committee was addressed by a guest speaker, Melissa Santiago-Val of Sew Positive 

(an organisation that had previously been awarded funding from the Community Chest), 
who informed Members of the work undertaken by the organisation and how the funding 
from the Council had been utilised. The Committee thanked the speaker for her 
presentation and commended Sew Positive for the work they were doing in South 
Cambridgeshire. Members asked some questions of the speaker and suggested that a 
press release be made by the Council with respect to Sew Positive and the Community 
Chest Grant funding it had received. 
 
The Development Officer (Communities Team), presented the report. The Committee 
reviewed the applications to the Community Chest Grant funding scheme received 
between 7 September and 7 October. Comment was made on the remaining budget for 
the Community Chest in the financial year, but following discussion and comments from 
the Lead Cabinet Member for Resources, the Committee was satisfied that the remaining 
budget was not a reason for concern.  
 
After consideration of the applications, the Committee recommended to the Lead Cabinet 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Grants Advisory Committee Thursday, 26 October 2023 

Member for Resources that the application from: 

 Melbourn Community Hub Management Group (JWHVTQTK) be approved 

and awarded the full amount requested of £2,000. 

 Active with Parkinson’s Cambs (DPSSSWKL) be approved and awarded 

the full amount requested of £2,000. 

 Newton Village Rooms (ZCFQPKXB) be deferred, pending further 

information on the Charity Commission Custodian ownership and whether a 

quote could be obtained instead of an estimated cost. 

 Cambridge Past, Present & Future (HBCKJJQW) be rejected as the 

application did not provide a request for funding of a specific item or project.  

 
Following consideration, the Committee agreed to recommend to the Lead Cabinet 
Member for Resources that an amendment, providing a link to ‘Defib Finder’, be included 
in the Community Chest Grant Guidance. 

  
5. Date of next meeting 
 
 The Committee was informed that the next meeting was due to be held on Friday 1 

December 2023. 

  

  
The Meeting ended at 10.45 a.m. 

 

 

Page 4



 
  

Report to: 
 

Grants Advisory Committee            1 December 2023 

Lead Cabinet Member: 
 

Councillor John Williams Lead Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Lead Officer: 
 

Gareth Bell, Communications and Communities 
Service Manager  
 

Key Decision: 
 
 

No  

 

 
 

Grants to the Voluntary Sector – Service Support 
Grants: 6-month progress report 
 

Executive Summary 

1. To examine the delivery of grant programmes funded by the Council for 2023-26. 
 

2. Six-monthly reports have been requested from organisations in receipt of sums 
greater than £10,000 per annum unless specifically requested by the Council. 

 
3. The reports provide a review of activity for Q1-Q2 only. 

 
Recommendations 

4. The Grants Advisory Committee is asked to review the report and make 
recommendations to the Lead Cabinet Member for Resources to inform his 
decision making in respect of service support grants to the voluntary sector.   

 
Details 

5. Service Support Grants help to support Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) 
organisations in South Cambridgeshire from 2023-2026 which fall under the 
following themes: 

 Mental Health and Wellbeing  

 Advice Services  

 Independent Living 

 Support for the voluntary and community sector 
 

6. Q1 and Q2 requested reports have been received from: 

 Cambridge Council for Voluntary Service (CCVS) (awarded £11,400 per 
annum) 

 Citizens Advice (awarded £100,000 per annum) 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 Home-Start Royston, Buntingford & South Cambridgeshire and Home-Start 
Cambridgeshire (awarded £13,711 per annum) 

 
7. A summary report of progress during quarters one and two for these 

organisations is provided in Appendix A. The summary also gives an officer 
opinion on the status against targets agreed within the grant agreements. Full 
organisational reports can be made available on request. 
 

8. Funding through the Service Support Grants programme is for three years, with 
an annual funding agreement for each organisation.  Funding is given, subject to 
satisfactory performance at annual review, and subject to the confirmation of 
Council budgets in February, ahead of each new financial year. This report covers 
the first two quarters for funding agreements for 2023-2024.   

 
9. Monitoring grants takes place at six monthly intervals for organisations in receipt 

of funding sums of £10,000 or greater per annum. Monitoring takes place 
annually for organisations in receipt of funding sums less than £10,000 per 
annum unless specifically requested by the Committee Members.  

 

Reasons for Recommendations 

10. All organisations in receipt of funding are on track to deliver the agreed outputs on 
time and to budget, achieving the objectives of individual grant agreements. 
 

Options 

11. The Grants Advisory Committee could: 
a) Note the progress of funded projects within the scope of this report, including 

officer summaries, as presented and/or 
b) Highlight any concerns for further investigation or action. 
 

Implications 

12. There are no significant implications. 

Legal 

13. Arrangements are in place with grant recipients, which should be followed if a 
variation or discontinuation of funding is agreed. 

Alignment with Council Priority Areas 

A modern and Caring Council 
 
14. South Cambridgeshire District Council will provide their customers with high-

quality services, strive to reduce costs, build on what they are good at to generate 
their own income and make decisions in a transparent, open and inclusive way. 
The ongoing objectives into 2023-24 include continuing to work with public sector 
partners and a network of parish councils and voluntary groups to support the 
most vulnerable people in the district. The Council is committed to creating and 

Page 6



supporting local community groups and organisations to deliver services for South 
Cambridgeshire residents. The Service Support Grant funding scheme to the 
Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) has been designed as a contribution to 
meeting this commitment. 
 

Background Papers 

None 
 

Appendices 

Appendix A: Service Support Grants to the Voluntary Sector 2023-2026 Q1 & Q2 
update 

Report Author:  

Emma Dyer –Development Officer  
email: emma.dyer@scambs.gov.uk  
Telephone: (01954) 713344 
 

Page 7

mailto:emma.dyer@scambs.gov.uk


This page is left blank intentionally.



Appendix A 
 

 

Service Support Grants to the Voluntary Sector 2023-2026 Q1 & Q2 update 

 
Name of organisation: Citizens Advice 
Location of organisation: Cambridge, North Hertfordshire, West Suffolk and Uttlesford 
Amount of funding awarded: £100,000 per annum 
Theme: Advice Services  
Parishes supported: All of district 
Key Aims: To develop, publicise and deliver advice services to South Cambridgeshire residents in 
a manner which takes account of the rural nature of the district, with delivery via outreach 
wherever possible. 
Key Deliverables: 
1. To provide an accessible advice service to South Cambridgeshire residents which is free at the 

point of use. 
2. To offer (a) named contact person/s for the Council for questions relating to the deliverables in 

this agreement, and general enquiries. 
Specific Measures: 

 To deliver general information, advice and advocacy on rights and responsibilities in all enquiry 
areas including debt, benefits, employment, housing, legal, and relationship and family matters. 

 To provide specialist advice and advocacy to those who are disabled, have caring 
responsibilities, to families with disabled children and those who would otherwise be unable to 
live independently. 

 To deliver advice by telephone, email, video and in person from main offices and at outreach 
locations (including, but not limited to Royston, Melbourn, and Bar Hill) 

 To rebuild and / or establish face to face services at outreach locations (including Community 
Hubs and foodbanks), to include the following (and / or others by mutual agreement with the 
Council): 

o Longstanton 
o Willingham 
o Cambourne 
o Bassingbourn 
o Orchard Park 
o Sawston  
o Linton 

 To log outcomes from the advice given, recording the value of income gained (from successful 
benefit claims and appeals, and debt management), problems resolved, and homelessness 
prevented. 

 To measure and record client satisfaction with the services provided and record customer 
complaints. 

 To monitor, on a monthly basis, the quality of advice given, to ensure the advice consistently 
meets the criteria set out by the Citizens Advice’s Quality of Advice Assessment. 

 In each funded year, to submit reports for Quarters 1 and 2 by the end of October, and annual 
reports by the end of April. These reports are to include the following information for South 
Cambridgeshire residents accessing Citizens Advice Services in the reporting period: 

o Breakdown showing the number of clients dealt with in the organisations in the 
consortium  

o Number of clients 
o Number of advice issues 
o Number of sessions 
o Total income gains for clients 
o Number of cases where homelessness prevented 
o Number of practical problems resolved 
o Number of clients with improved mental health Page 9



 Issues dealt with by: 
o category 
o channel (in person (office-based)/ in person (outreach)/ phone/ email) 
o age of client 
o gender of client 
o health status of client 
o ethnicity of client 

 Category of issue data for age groups: 
o under 25s 
o 25-64 
o 65+ 

 Map indicating relative concentrations of Citizens Advice clients by ward 

 Map showing index of multiple deprivation (IMD) by ward 

 Financial outcomes  

 Client case studies 

 Selection of client feedback 
 
Update for Q1 and Q2: 
Summary: 

 Number of SCDC people helped - 2,910 (2,575 last half year) 

 Amount of work generated by clients - times seen (most need more than one session to get 
to point of resolution) - 5,341 (4,682 last Half year) 

 Questions answered/ advice issues - 6,002 (5,597 last half year) Of those questions asked 
the top topic areas:  
o Welfare rights - 2,192 
o Debt and money advice - 937 
o Housing - 648 

 Total income gains and debts written off for clients: £3,311,987 (£2,662,467 for the whole 
year) 

 
North Herts: 

 Have recruited a new Specialist Adviser for South Cambridgeshire who carries out 
generalist advice work at the Melbourn Hub every Wednesday, and debt and benefits 
specialist advice for all South Cambridgeshire residents. 

 Current Service is face to face on a Wednesday at Melbourn Hub and on Mondays and 
Wednesday at their Royston outreach. Appointments can be carried out face to face at 
these locations, by telephone, or by video call.  
 

West Suffolk: 

 Have secured funding to help male Probationers on Community Orders, Suspended 
Sentence Orders, Supervision Orders, Licence and Post-Sentence Supervision with the 
Bury St Edmunds Probation Office. Support will include opening and manging back 
accounts, budgeting, managing debts, maximising income, and applying for benefits. 

 Have secured funding to continue delivering advice and casework to families affected by 
Multiple Sclerosis in South Cambridgeshire. In the first six months of 2023/24 they have 
assisted 7 people with applications for Personal Independence Payments. 

 On 19th September their operations Manager, gave a talk about Citizens Advice to the Love 
Abington group at the new community hub. She talked about how to access their service 
and the projects available to clients. The organiser was particularly interested in the MS 
Project as there was someone affected by MS in the village she thought could benefit from 
their work. 

  
 
Cambridge: 

Page 10



 Continues to offer outreach to clients in Cambourne, Bar Hill and Northstowe. They work 
with the food bank, and they are looking to extend their social supermarket offer.  

 Have extended their online services to localised webchat and also provided an add on to 
their website that has an app to make it accessible to people with disabilities and language 
issues. 

  
Case Studies: 

 Client A had moved house and needed help to check their entitlement to benefits. An 
appointment was made for face-to-face advice as Client A is partially sighted and did not 
feel able to access information independently. A benefits check was completed which 
indicated that the Client A was entitled to claim Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support. 
Client A was supported to make the claims, and these were successful. Client A’s. income 
was increased by £121.60 per week. 

 Client B was self-employed running his own business with his wife. He was finding it 
increasingly difficult to work due to his Multiple Sclerosis, sleep apnoea, diabetes, anxiety, 
and depression. He needed help to complete the medical assessment form for Employment 
and Support Allowance. He was already in receipt of both the Daily Living and Mobility 
components of Personal Independence Payments. He was helped to complete the form 
and he is now in receipt of the benefit. 

 Client C is in her 50s and is a single mother with two teenage children. She suffers from 
long term physical and mental health problems. As a result, the family finances had become 
extremely precarious, and she was heavily in debt. She was initially referred to Cambridge 
Citizens Advice by the Cambridgeshire Family Safeguarding Project as she needed help 
with pursuing her appeal against the decision not to award her an increase in Personal 
Independence Payment (PIP) to reflect her poor health. Client C also needed support with 
challenging the reductions made in her Universal Credit (UC) monthly payments in relation 
to an overpayment that she believed was based on an incorrect assessment of her recent 
earnings. In addition, she was seeking help with pursuing unpaid child maintenance by her 
former partner. 
 
The adviser began working with Client C to build up an accurate picture of her financial 
situation. As a result, it became clear that she was £500 in deficit at the end of each month, 
taking into account debt repayments she was making to her brother, her credit card 
company and the council. The adviser suggested that once she had received specialist 
debt advice, she could look at prioritising certain repayments, as this financial burden was 
clearly unsustainable. He offered her initial help in the form of applying for a Tesco voucher 
via Cambridge Aid. He also showed her ways to reduce her broadband charges. Client C 
explained that she was aware that she was spending too heavily on alcohol and tobacco, 
but her consumption has been exacerbated by her ongoing health issues and money-
related stress. 
 
The adviser continued to help her prepare her application for Mandatory Consideration of 
the DWP’s decision not to award her additional elements of Personal Independence 
Payment (PIP). If her appeal proved successful, this would lead to a significant increase in 
her monthly income. He ensured that she had submitted all the necessary paperwork and 
filled the forms in correctly. On looking into the issue of Client C’s UC overpayment, he was 
able to discover that she had not earned as much as the DWP had calculated and the 
overpayment was therefore much less that the DWP had told her that she must repay. The 
advisor suggested she contact her work coach at the DWP to draw their attention to this 
error so it could be swiftly rectified. 
 
Following the PIP Mandatory Consideration hearing, Client C was much relieved to be able 
to report to the adviser that her appeal had been successful. She had been awarded 
enhanced rate for both daily living and mobility elements, totalling almost £9,000 a year and 
would also receive £3,000 as a back payment. After working with Client C over a period of Page 11



two months, the advisor was finally able to send her a revised budget sheet confirming that 
this new PIP award would turn her monthly deficit of £500 into £470 available income after 
her main spend. He explained that she could now afford to keep up the level of debt 
repayments she was making. There was good news also on the UC overpayment. Having 
re-contacted the DWP to report the findings as to her true level of earnings, her current debt 
had been reduced to £240.  
 
As a result of the specialist help and support Client C has received, her overall finances 
have been transformed from a crisis point into a positive state. Having played a key role in 
helping her take action to reduce her anxieties over money, the adviser assured her that 
she could re-contact the helpline at any point for further support with her pursuit of the 
missing child maintenance payments. 
 
Uttlesford Case studies: 

 Client D was aged over 80. He had multiple physical and sensory disabilities and did not 
know how to use a computer. He was referred by the council for benefits advice as their 
rent had recently increased, and he and his wife were finding it hard to meet their 
expenses. 
Our adviser carried out a benefits check, exploring eligibility for Attendance Allowance, 
Pension Credit and Housing Benefit. It was identified that they would be entitled to both 
Housing Benefit and Council tax Support and were each helped to make an application. 
Client D and his wife were also referred to the Warm Homes team for advice on reducing 
their utility bills. Finally, the disability benefits team helped Client D claim Attendance 
Allowance. He was awarded the higher rate - £101.75 a week. This additional income has 
enabled them to afford some help in the home and means they can afford to attend some 
social events, so they do not feel so isolated. 
 

 Client E was concerned about the future care of her adult son, who has learning difficulties 
and wanted to explore the options open to them. The Son currently lives with his parents. 
He could not work but was not claiming any benefits. A benefits check was undertaken and 
identified that the son would be able to claim Universal Credit. They were then supported to 
help make the claim. 
The Son was referred to the Disability Benefits Team for help to make a claim for Personal 
Independence Payment. They believed that Mark would be entitled to the Higher Rate, 
which would increase his income by 101.75 a week. 
The adviser also discussed legal issues - including lasting power of attorney and provided a 
list of local Solicitors who were willing to provide a free initial appointment. 
 

 Uttlesford Frontline referred Client F to a number of support services locally. She was very 
pleased to have been able to explore her options and felt comforted that she had a better 
understanding of her next steps. Client F was assured that she could return for further 
advice should she need it in the future. 

 
Quotes: 

 On behalf of Love Abington and everyone who came to the Autumn Hub yesterday, I would 
like to thank you very much for your inspiring presentation about the work of the Citizens 
Advice Bureau and for answering our questions and meeting people over tea. I personally 
was very pleased to meet you. You are an excellent speaker and held your audience in the 
palm of your hand. I was struck by your passion and enthusiasm for the charity's work, and 
I am certain there will be more donations, as well as enquiries I am afraid, coming your 
way. 

  

 I am going to visit and hand out some of your leaflets to people who would benefit from your 
services but were unable to come yesterday. Several of our villagers are housebound but 
they want to stay connected and they will be grateful to know that there is help out there. Page 12



 
Officer Comments: On track. 
 

With regards to ‘outreach’, the agreement provided suggestions for 7 locations where this 
might be best placed – to be negotiated if they could propose alternatives. Through 
discussions with their CEO, we have been informed that they are already operating 
remotely in some places (Melbourn and Bar Hill use our funding; Orchard Park uses our 
funding for our residents but is based from the Meadows Centre in City).  They are also 
delivering advice in other locations, but this is either funded by another organisation or is 
limited to foodbank users and not the wider community. 
We have agreed that they will work with us to devise a plan for outreach in the 6 locations 
below (with Sawston continuing, funded by the John Huntingdon’s Charity), by way of either 
in person sessions or online (with a person on a screen).  Citizens Advice have access to 
hardware/software that allows someone to see their advisor, who can take control of the 
screen and guide them through the online session.  But these ‘computers’ (different from 
their old kiosks) will need to be located in places that have staff / volunteers who are willing 
to support access, and in locations where confidentiality can be assured.  This might be a 
library, community hub, or another suitable community facility where there is a side room.   

 Bar Hill - in person 
 Melbourn - in person 
 Northstowe - possibly using the temporary facility to host a device for remote sessions or 

in person as an extension to the foodbank, for ALL residents  
 Cambourne – possibly based at the Hub and to be hosted / supported by Hope CIC, again, 

with users broader than foodbank 
 Orchard Park – an extension to the Meadows, potentially from the Hub once a month 
 Linton - to be set up when the Community Hub starts, location to be confirmed such as the 

library 

Another meeting will be organised for mid Jan 2024 to monitor progress.  
 
Name of organisation: Home-Start Royston, Buntingford & South Cambridgeshire Home-
Start Cambridgeshire 
Location of organisation: Meldreth  
Amount of funding awarded: £13,711 per annum 
Theme: Mental Health and Wellbeing 
Parishes supported: All 
Key Aims: To provide early-intervention, volunteer-led home visiting support and specialised 
family support groups for vulnerable at-risk families struggling with diverse and often complex 
issues 
Key Deliverables:  

 To deliver a project to improve the mental wellbeing of 10 families in South Cambridgeshire 
by: 
o Reducing pressure that leads to stress & poor mental health 
o Reducing parental isolation by facilitating involvement in local groups/services 
o Improving children’s physical, social & emotional development 
o Improving self-esteem to enable more positive relationships 
o Improving children’s behaviour, due to more consistent parenting. 

 To report on the outcomes of the programme using case studies (anonymised) wherever 
possible to demonstrate the impact of the support given and methodology used. 

Specific Measures: 

 Weekly meetings (for approximately nine months) between each family and a highly trained 
volunteer. 

 At each visit, the volunteer will ask each family to complete a form, using a five-point scale 
to identify how well they feel they are coping.  Page 13



 To monitor the progress of the services provided at The Initial Visit, The Review Visit(s) and 
The Exit Visit. 

 Monitoring of the success of the project using Exit Forms  

 To deliver a volunteer training event  
Update for Q1 and Q2: 

 Since April 2023 volunteers have accessed safeguarding refresher training, a peer support 
session for home visiting volunteers, perinatal & infant mental health training and happy 
healthy homes training (eating, finance and sleeping for families). Training is also planned 
for Spring 2024. 

 Have started to provide support to 10 families. The focus of the support has been to 
address the issues as per the key deliverables above. This has been done by matching 
each family with a well-trained volunteer, who has made weekly visits to the family in their 
own home. The visits have been planned to meet the needs identified by each family 
themselves, focusing on the five outcomes listed above. 

 One family referred were living in a safehouse, but they could not be matched with a 
volunteer until a fuller understanding of their situation was provided and a robust risk 
assessment undertaken which included liaising with other professionals. A co-ordinator 
provided some interim support for this family until they were matched with a volunteer.  

 Of the 10 families, three had complex needs, including two with Early Help Assessments in 
place and one with a Child Protection Plan in place. This has required additional time from 
the co-ordinators who have liaised with other professionals more frequently, attended multi 
professional meetings and where applicable provide written reports. 

 Families have been referred by a variety of different professionals including Family Worker, 
Early Help Hub, SEND specialist practitioner, peri-natal mental health practitioner, CBT and 
EMDR Therapist, Preschool, Health Visitor and three families referred themselves. 

 Families referred into the project live in postcode areas including SG8, CB23, CB24 and 
CB25 

 At six months into this project support has been completed for four families, is ongoing for 
another five and one family has received an initial visit from a member of staff and is waiting 
to be matched with a volunteer. 
 

The table below summarises the challenges that the families supported through this project have 
been experiencing when they have been referred to Home-Start. It also lists the actions 
undertaken by volunteers to support the families to start managing some of these challenges: 
 

Presenting problems  Actions carried out by volunteer  

 Mental Health for parents including 
anxiety, depression, eating disorder 

 Mental health for children 

 Isolation 

 Low self-esteem Domestic abuse 

 Loneliness  

 Family relations between adults at 
home Lack of time/connection 
between parents and children 

 Lack of routines around mealtimes  

 Lack of meal planning Lack of 
routines around bedtime 

 Arriving late to preschool  

 Not enrolled in preschool  

 Children’s speech and language 

 Inappropriate housing 

 Bereavement  

 Listening and allowing parents to offload 

 Emotional support Playing with children 
– bringing toys and activities 

 Reading and singing with children  

 Signposting to other services for more 
specialist MH support 

 Finding out about local groups and 
attending together  

 Finding out about other local services – 
parks, libraries and attending together 

 Adapting Park visits for a child with a 
disability so they can access some play 
equipment safely 

 Support to carry out physio exercises 
and build into routine of day  

 Practicing behaviour management 
strategies outside of the home  

Page 14



 Financial challenges 

 Lack of confidence to do school run  

 No time for parental self-care 

 No time to do important 
physiotherapy exercises  

 Visiting parks and being outside 

 Ideas to help play and development 
at home 

 Local groups 

 Difficulty accessing online Mental 
Health therapy  

 Supporting letters around potential 
house move 

 Finding out about and visiting local 
preschools 

 Positive encouragement highlighting 
things that are going well 

 Planning meals and cooking together 

 Eating together 

 Helping to set up regular bedtime 
routines Time with child so Mum can 
bathe, make calls, access online support  

 Support to clear and tidy garden 

 Support to access foodbank and other 
support services 

 Volunteer engaging with child enabling 
parent to access online therapy sessions 

A list of the outcomes seen for the families who are receiving support: 
Outcomes for parents  Outcomes for children  

 Improved self confidence 

 Better mental health 

 Stronger relationships between care 
givers in the family home 

 Strengthened relationships between 
children and parents  

 More established support networks 
both peer support and through support 
from other organisations and agencies  

 More confidence to know where to go 
and how to ask for additional help  

 More confidence to engage with other 
professionals  

 More consistent and regular routines 
for eating  

 Developed skills in meal planning and 
eating together 

 Ability to independently access other 
groups or activities/parks and play 
spaces 

 Better management of household tasks 
so more time to focus on the children 
Improved morning routines  

 Improved speech  

 Better ability to articulate needs and 
emotions 

 More ready to start at a preschool 
setting 

 Arriving at school on time and in a 
better position to learn 

 Stronger attachment, more confidence 
to engage with other adults 

 More able to engage and play with 
other children 

 Improved relationships with main care 
givers  

 More opportunities to play outside and 
at the park, improving physical health 
Improved fine motor skills 

 Less tired  

 Happier to try new foods and access to 
a healthier more regular diet  

 
 
Quotes: 

 “You have made it possible to do my counselling and get the MH support I need” 

 “[My child] enjoyed playing games and loves her coming to visit” 

 “Had a great morning with my volunteer), I will really miss her as she has become someone 
I look forward to seeing every week to have a chat. She has been a fantastic help and a 
good friend to listen or socialise with and to push me even on days when I don’t want to” 

 “(Volunteer) respects me a lot which builds my confidence and self-esteem” 

 “I look forward to it, she makes me feel normal, like she can relate to me and understands 
what I say” 

 “I trust her (volunteer) literally so much, immensely helpful” 
Page 15



 “Through Home-Start’s support I feel I am finally returning to who I used to be. It’s been 
such a long time of not feeling like myself I hardly knew who I was any more but now I 
recognize myself and I am regaining parts of myself I thought I had lost” 

 “Having someone who believes in me has given me confidence and I’ve seen how this has 
benefited my children” 

 
Officer Comments: On track  
 
Name of organisation: The Cambridge Council For Voluntary Service (CCVS) 
Location of organisation: Cambridge 
Amount of funding awarded: £11,400 per annum 
Theme: Support for the voluntary and community sector 
Parishes supported: All 
Key Aims: To provide independent support services to community and voluntary groups in South 
Cambridgeshire; to support and advice parish councils on community related projects and advice 
on non-statutory governance matters; to provide representation on the behalf of the Voluntary and 
Community Sector in South Cambridgeshire. 
Key Deliverables: 

 Support for the voluntary and community sector by providing practical support and training 
to build knowledge and confidence of those involved with community groups and charities. 

 Evidence of all specific measures to be provided as part of monitoring reports to the 
Council.  Details to include numbers of groups supported and the outcomes achieved 
through that support. 

 Support for the voluntary and community sector by encouraging individuals and groups 
working in and across communities to collaborate and build relationships  

 Support for the voluntary and community sector by amplifying the voices of communities 
and champion the work of the groups working in them 

 Support for the voluntary and community sector by ensuring Communication methods are fit 
for purpose and meet the needs of South Cambridgeshire members, the wider Voluntary 
and Community Sector and other stakeholders. 

 
Specific Measures: 

 Provide advice on all aspects of setting up, running, and funding groups 
o 1-2-1 support by video, email, on the phone or in person 
o The updating and maintenance of existing good practice guides and website pages  
o To support emerging topics and share best practice that will impact how organisations 

should be managed or operate 
o Help with identifying funding and 1-2-1 assisted funding searches  
o Help with developing funding/fundraising strategies and targeting funding as well as 

support for all aspects of financial management to small community and voluntary 
organisations to ensure they meet their legal requirements  

o A critical friend service to analyse and strengthen groups’ funding bids  
o Help with all aspects of setting up a new group, including support with Governance, 

quality assurance and business/strategic planning 
o Dispute resolution to help groups overcome issues they are facing 
o Ensure groups are aware of their responsibilities, their legal requirements and good 

practice. 

 Provide high quality training and events to give the people working and volunteering in 
groups the skills and knowledge they need. This will include: 
o Four webinars or training workshops. Each will also include extensive handouts and 

notes and will be linked to a blog or video guide 
o The offer of bespoke training and consultancy to groups (at a reduced cost) to help them 

identify and resolve specific issues. 

 Run two South Cambridgeshire specific networking sessions (and monitor the format of the 
delivery of these sessions going forwards- either online, in person, or as a hybrid of the two)  Page 16



 Continue to invite South Cambridgeshire groups to other networking events.  

 Work with groups of organisations who want to develop new networks and act as advisor 
and provide banking support as needed. 

 Attend SCDC meetings as the representative of the community sector to promote the work 
of organisations and ensure the sector is considered in policy and project development 

 Use CCVS communications to share the successes of the sector and to enable the sector 
to share its own stories and achievements.   

 Promote the sector via traditional and social medias   

 Signpost those looking for sector input and stories to groups with the skills, understanding, 
and knowledge to best represent the sector/ specialism 

 Develop a process for collecting and sharing the sector’s issues and views   

 Work with staff at SCDC to identify appropriate meetings that require a VCS input, with 
attendance at up to six South Cambridgeshire District Council events/forums if requested 
by South Cambridgeshire District Council to provide advice, information and support to local 
community and voluntary organisations (and/or parish councils if relevant to the work of 
CCVS) 

 Provide appropriate sector analytics and data. This will include:  
o An annual survey 
o Dissemination of national findings. 

 Electronic newsletters sent to all contacts. These are currently produced monthly but we will 
continue to monitor if this is what groups want 

 Four electronic newsletters to local councillors and the clerks of parish councils to promote 
CCVS and the work of the sector 

 A website that is regularly updated with news, information and good practice guides 

 A blog that allows us to share information and opinion from CCVS and others with an 
interest in the work of the sector 

 Social media updates and promotion 

 Work with traditional press to promote the sector 

 Work with other publications to promote the sector 

 Work with communications teams from local and national partners to help share their 
messages and news. 

Update for Q1 and Q2: 
 
Provide advice on all aspects of setting up, running, and funding groups: 

 Since the start of April, CCVS have supported over 189 organisations, providing at least 
416 hours of support via video, phone, or in-person on all element of running a small 
charity. 

 Provided tailored 1-2-1 support on at least 49 occasions, on setting up a group and 
provided support on fundraising at least 46 times.  

 Continued to act as a critical friend when working on grant applications and help groups to 
consider ways to diversify income. 

 Supported groups to utilise Support Cambridgeshire 4 Community to find funds that may 
support their work and sharing these opportunities directly via email when appropriate, 
through the Fundraisers Network Slack group and via their communications channels.  

 Provided and created resources that small community groups can refer to. This includes 
on-demand training, as previously mentioned, as well as blogs, that help to summary key 
information and best practice. All training and events are accompanied by a slide pack, that 
acts as a resource as well as additional sources of information.  

 The on-demand training that is being shared under Support Cambridgeshire is created to 
support the set-up of new groups. With topics covering: 
o First steps in setting up your community group. 
o Is your group a charity? 
o What structure will you choose? Page 17



o Writing and amending your governing document 
o Insurance for community groups 
o Opening a bank account and setting up financial controls 
o Business planning 
o What do trustees have to do? 

 
These sessions have had 158 viewing to date. CCVS believe there is potential to share 
these further to ensure more groups are aware of them and are looking to do this over the 
next six months, whilst also adding some new recordings on topics such as the roles within 
a committee.  

 
Training and events: 
Delivered: 
o 28 June. Successful Fundraising for Voluntary Groups (SCDC). 18 bookings.  
o 22 Sept. Introduction to Safeguarding. 18 bookings. Average star rating for overall 

quality of course, 5 out of 5. 
Scheduled:  
o 9th Nov. Health & Safety live online training.  
o 20th Feb 2024. Data Protection live online training.  

 

 All training sessions are accompanied by supportive resources and further support. 

 In addition to these training sessions, CCVS have delivered 10 further training sessions 
or webinars that have also been available to South Cambridgeshire groups. In total-380 
bookings were made for these sessions. 

 Responses have been collected from those attending training by sending out a survey 
after the event. The return rate is low but from those received CCVS received an 
average score of 4.45 out of 5 for the overall quality of the course. 

 Continue to offer bespoke training and consultancy to groups.  

 Continue to invite South Cambridgeshire groups to their Volunteer Managers Network, 
Fundraisers Network and the 3C’S meeting (Communications Network). During this time 
frame they have delivered 8 online network events, with a total of 150 bookings. The 
network events continue to be well attended, including guest speakers as well as 
opportunities for attendees to share learning and get peer support for their roles. 

 In addition to these networks, South Cambridgeshire groups are also invited to 
additional events delivered through CCVS’ partnership with Hunts Forum and Support 
Cambridgeshire. 
Topics covered:   
o Volunteer Managers Network have discussed the Vision for Volunteering, sharing 

outcome of the Time Well Spent research, and improving EDI is recruitment.  
o Fundraisers Network have discussion corporate fundraising, donor retention, options 

for databases and grant funding.  
o 3 C’s have discussed, accessible communications, well-being, and social media.  

 
Work with groups of organisations who want to develop new networks and act as 
advisor and provide banking support as needed: 

 CCVS continue to offer this support as needed and have provided banking support to 
the Northstowe Community Partnership as it closed, and then passed on funds to the 
Northstowe Community Hub to be used in accordance with the original grants. 
 

Attend SCDC meetings as the representative of the community sector to promote the 
work of organisations and ensure the sector is considered in policy and project 
development: 

 Have continued to attend the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP) and 
associated meetings. 

Page 18



 Have attended a communications and community team meeting to promote CCVS’ 
work. 

 Presented at Zero Carbon Communities Grant webinar on 26 April and attended the 
Zero Carbon Communities Green Connect on 27 Sept. 

 Have continued to attend place-based groups around Northstowe where they can add 
value and where there are links with volunteering work. Also fed into the conversations 
on the design of the new community facility. 

 Are happy to attend other meetings and events as requested 

 There has been no call to run two South Cambridgeshire specific networking sessions 
given the increased networking sessions delivered by SCDC but are still able to provide 
this, if required. 

 
Use CCVS communications to share the successes of the sector and to enable the 
sector to share its own stories and achievements: 

 Have continued to improve and adapt their delivery to ensure they are meeting the 
needs of our local voluntary organisations, and the communities in which they live and 
serve, as well as being mindful of the need to share important national VCSE updates. 

 The monthly full newsletters are their main, and most important way to share news and 
reach and they continue to achieve open rates beyond average. (Campaign monitor 
latest report states that the 2022 rate for non-profits was 26.6%. CCVS has achieved for 
35.5% for this 6-month period). 

 CCVS’ subject specific newsflash bulletins continue to be very well received, with an 
open rate well above average of 44.2%. 

 To date they have sent 1 councillor email, with 199 subscribers and open rate of 37.4%. 

 They have also sent 1 parish clerk email, with 107 subscribers and an open rate of 
30.8%. 

 The CCVS website remains an important place to share information and resources. 
They recognise that their current website is no longer fit for purpose, therefore during 
this 6-month period they have undertaken steps to appoint a new website developer and 
begin the process of obtaining a new website. Their aim is to have a much more up to 
date, easy to navigate, fully accessible site, which will have features to help streamline 
our work.  

 The whole team is involved in writing and producing blogs, especially to follow training 
or workshops to reinforce what was shared, or about particular areas of interest. These 
are published on our blog site, and shared on their website, newsletter, and on social 
media.  9 blogs have been published in this 6-month period. 

 Have continued to deliver social media through LinkedIn, Twitter, Facebook and 
Instagram. The total CCVS audience for all platforms is 6085. This is an increase of 
244 since the last 6-month period. 

 Have continued to keep contact with local radio and press and will be utilising these 
contacts to promote their volunteer fair, as the audience for this will be the general 
public. 

 The CCVS Communications Officer attends NAVCA network meetings for 
Communications Workers to develop understanding and news that is relevant to the 
sector.   

 Have published the latest, State of the Sector 2023 report and will collecting new data in 
January 2024. Their annual State of the Sector Survey aims to capture a snapshot of 
the voluntary and community sector in Cambridgeshire, along with the views of the 
people on the frontline, delivering services to local communities. This was conducted in 
February and March 2023 when we were in the heart of the cost-of-living crisis. This 
new crisis replaced the crisis of the pandemic, and they have continued to see the 
sector needing to be there for local communities and how the sector has become the 
essential safety net for many. They have looked at:  
o Section 1 - Issues and barriers facing groups.  

Page 19

https://www.campaignmonitor.com/resources/guides/email-marketing-benchmarks/


o Section 2 - What services groups want.  
o Section 3 – About the groups responding.  
o As well as the survey we have analysed data from the charity commission and 360 

Giving for organisations in Cambridgeshire (this work was carried out by David Kane 
https://dkane.net)  

o Section 4 – Analysis of the sector from open data sources.  
This work helps CCVS to understand the local sector and the issues it is facing and 
gives vital information about the type of support that is most needed, to identify how they 
are doing and how they can improve their offer and services. 
The survey results show that there is uncertainty about the future and that people are 
less optimistic than in the previous year. Yet we can see groups continuing to deliver 
and looking at how they adapt and develop in order keep delivering. 
CCVS and Hunts Forum shared the outcome of this research through newsflashes to 
their mailing lists and through publishing news articles, blogs and sharing via our social 
media platforms. It has also informed their planning for 2024-25.  

 Are continuing to share national research through CCVS networks and communications 
channels. 

 
Feedback on events and training: 

 “An excellent session, would really recommend and will be recommending to the rest of 
our trustees.” 

 “Much better understanding of what the various terms mean and how to use them. 
Learning about the various models was very useful as was discussion about how we 
could use these to clarify our strategy. I feel more confident about how we might go 
about demonstrating value for money to funders.” 

 “I've learnt lots that will help me as I continue to recruit volunteers, and lots to help me 
encourage them to remain content in their roles.” 

 “It was the perfect balance of engagement, facilitator talk. I learnt a lot” 

 “It was really great with lots of helpful ideas and links.” 

 “Meeting was interesting and useful” 

 “A brilliant session!” 
 
Feedback on development support provided:  

 “I asked a question about funding available for CIC vs CIOs and XX not only did some 
research for me but also provided me with lots of additional information. I have now met 
one of the bilingual schools for whom this is of interest (they need to choose a 
framework) and they were very happy with what I could pass on.” 

 “Thank you so much for this detailed reply, and all the help as we navigate the process 
of formalising our group. The videos on your site are particularly helpful.” 

 “Trust me you are a fantastic bunch, and you help charities to achieve big things all the 
time. I personally would be lost without your guidance, knowledge and patience. Thank 
you for your unwavering support. You always seek to improve and look to tailor your 
provision of services to charities. We think you are great.” 

 “It was so useful to chat through the situation with you …we needed your experience to 
help us make the right decision” 

 
Feedback on CCVS communications: 

 “That was a fab read – personally, I love CCVS communications, and it was 
fascinating finding out more about the personalities in your team! I always learn 
something and there is usually something very useful to share with our team.” 

Case Study: 
CCVS supported the trustees from Northstowe Hub with the process of refining its charitable 
purpose, developing a business plan, and ultimately registering as a Foundation Charitable 
Incorporated Organisation (CIO). 

Page 20



In October 2022 CCVS met with a group of Northstowe residents who had been involved in 
managing a community space that has been repurposed and was not longer accessible for 
general use. The group wanted to create a charity to ensure the community has access to a long-
term facility to help the new community thrive. 
The CCVS team, met with the committee to support them with the development of their vision and 
define the charitable purpose of the new organisation. The CCVS team helped the committee 
review appropriate sample objects from Charity Commission resources. And put the group in 
touch with other groups who had been addressing similar issues. 
To aid the group with their registration and to support their mission, CCVS helped the group 
develop a business plan by offering guidance, help sheets and acting as a critical friend. CCVS 
also provided guidance on key policies. 
In April 2023 the group committee submitted their application to the Charity Commission. The 
Commission responded in June with some queries which the committee discussed with CCVS 
before replying and successfully achieving their registration as a foundation Charitable 
Incorporated Company. 
Northstowe Hub will now use its charitable status to help represent the requirements of the local 
community on a management board of a temporary community building owned by SCDC.  
 
Comments from Northstowe Trustees on their experience of CCVS support: 
“CCVS provided us with the advice, knowledge and support we needed to take our ideas and 
vision and put them together to form the framework of our charity. Thank you so much for all your 
time and words of wisdom! Now to actually get on with the tasks in hand. Your help (CCVS) has 
been invaluable” 
Approved by Northstowe Hub 21st Aug 2023 
 
Officer Comments: On track. With regards to the running SCDC specific networking sessions, we 
will explore options and work with CCVS in Q3 and Q4 so these can be delivered. 
 
Organisations’ reports are available on request 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



This page is left blank intentionally.



 
  

Report to: 
 

Grants Advisory Committee            1 December 2023 

Lead Cabinet Member: 
 

Councillor John Williams Lead Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Lead Officer: 
 

Gareth Bell, Communications and Communities 
Service Manager  
 

Key Decision: 
 
 

No  

 

 
 

Community Chest Grant: Funding Applications 

 

Executive Summary 

1. To consider new applications received between 7 October 2023 and 7 November 
2023 for the Community Chest Grant funding scheme.   
 

Recommendations 

2. It is recommended that the Grants Advisory Committee considers all applications 
for funding that are set out in Appendix A to this report and makes a 
recommendation to the Lead Cabinet Member for Resources regarding the level 
of funding (£0 - £2,000) to be awarded for each, or defers a decision, if further 
information is required, or rejects an application if it doesn’t comply with the grant 
criteria. 

 
Details 

3. The Community Chest is grant funding available to voluntary and community 
sector groups, charities and public sector bodies wishing to further improve 
quality of life in South Cambridgeshire. Applicants may apply for up to £2,000 and 
the community activity or project must deliver one or more of the following:  
 

 Improvements to community buildings and spaces (i.e., village halls / pavilions 
/ play areas etc)  

 Repairs to historic buildings / monuments / memorials 

 Equipment / capital purchase 

 Materials 

 Start-up costs (may include training of staff / volunteers, hall hire and other 
revenue costs) 

 Costs involved with the creation of a Community-Led Plan (not the resulting 
projects) 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



 Enhance the natural environment / result in a sustainable increase in local 
biodiversity 

 Provide a benefit to those affected by the cost-of-living crisis  
 

In accordance with the criteria, Parish Councils of any size can apply for 
biodiversity grants through this fund. 

 
Parish Councils are also eligible to apply if they are using funds to deliver 
community engagement for the creation of a Community-Led Plan.  
 
Parish Councils are also eligible to apply if they are using funds to provide a 
benefit to those affected by the cost-of-living crisis.  
 

4. Guidance notes and full eligibility criteria can be found at Appendix B. This now 
includes a reference to  Defib Finder (highlighted in grey) as agreed at October 
Grants Advisory Committee, which provides up to date information on defibrillator 
locations across the UK, using data from The Circuit, the national defibrillator 
network. 
 

5. The total amount of funding available for Community Chest Grants in 2023/24 is 
£58,000. 
 

6. In addition, there is £10,000 ringfenced for 2023/24 for Biodiversity Grants, 
£45,780 ringfenced (expiring in October 2023) for the creation of Community-
Led Plans and £18,468.08 ringfenced until end March 2024 (obtained from a 
successful bid to the Integrated Care System) for cost-of-living crisis projects. 

 
7. Two Community Chest projects have not progressed as expected and as a result, 

this funding has been returned to the Council: 

 £2,000 from Longstanton Grasshoppers Cricket Club (CZKLTJWG) which 
was approved at the June 2022 Grants Advisory Committee.  

 £360.24 from the total of £1,400 awarded to Cogwheel Counselling 
(KBTBQWNX) at the June 2022 Grants Advisory Committee.  

These sums have been added to the Community Chest budget for last month, 
providing an updated balance of £21,027.45 
 

8. A summary of the applications can be found at Appendix A (copies of the 
applications forms are available from the Communities Team upon request).   

 
9. The table below details the budget remaining at the time of this report within each 

subsection of the Community Chest, as well as the number of applications made, 
and the total amounts applied for:  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24

https://www.defibfinder.uk/


Type  
(total fund for the 

period) 

Date fund 
expires 

Total budget 
at last 
month 

Applications 
received 

this month 

Total 
applied for 
this month 

Remaining 
budget if all 

projects funded 
this month 

Community Chest 
(58,000)  

 

31 March 
2024 

£21,027.45 2 £4,000 £17,027.45 

Biodiversity 
(£10,000) 

 

31 March 
2024 

£8,000.00 0 0 £8,000.00 

Community-Led 
Plans (£45,780) 

 

October 
2023 

£43,780.00 0 0 £43,780.00 

Cost- Of Living 
(£18,468.08) 

 

31 March 
2024 

£17,324.12 0 0 £17,324.12 

Total - £90,131.57 2 £4,000 £86,131.57 

 

Reasons for Recommendations 

10. The Grants Advisory Committee’s role is to consider and make recommendations 
to the Lead Cabinet Member responsible for grants, or Cabinet as appropriate, 
including, but not limited to: 
 
a) Reviewing the Council’s grant schemes to ensure they reflect Council 

priorities.  
 

b) Designing any new or revised grant schemes, including consideration of 
criteria and guidance applicable in respect of each scheme.  
 

c) Considering applications made under the Council’s grant schemes.  
 
Options 

11. The Grants Advisory Committee may consider all applications for funding that are 
set out in Appendix A of this report and recommend to the Lead Cabinet Member 
for Resources to: 
 

A) award the amount of funding requested, 
B) award an alternative amount of funding, including zero funding,   
C) defer a decision, if further information is required from grant applicants, or 
D) reject an application stating the reason for this. 

 
Implications 

12. There are no significant implications. 

Consultation responses 

13.  Wherever possible, local members have been consulted on applications that 
directly affect their local area.  

Page 25



 
Alignment with Council Priority Areas 

14. The corporate aims are referenced in the criteria and guidance notes for the 
Community Chest. 

 

Background Papers 

15. Grants Advisory Committee Meetings: 
https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1096&Year=0  
 

Appendices 

Appendix A: Applications Summary 
 
Appendix B: Guidance notes for Community Chest 

Report Author:  

Emma Dyer –Development Officer  
email: emma.dyer@scambs.gov.uk  
Telephone: (01954) 713344 
 

Page 26

https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1096&Year=0
mailto:emma.dyer@scambs.gov.uk


Appendix A 

   

Reference TGCTCZLR    
Community 
Chest Grant 

 
Name of Organisation Waterbeach and Landbeach Action for Youth 

Organisation Type Charity 1095181  

CCVS Registered No 

Parish Waterbeach 

Landowner Waterbeach Parish Council 

Project Type Equipment / capital purchase/ Materials 

Green option considered? 
using food donated from the food waste reducing 
scheme Fare Shares. No single use plastic  

Documentation Status Safeguarding Yes Accounts Yes 

  Quote Yes 
Mission 

Statement Yes 

District Councillor Support 
 

Yes- Cllrs Paul Bearpark, Judith Rippeth and Anna 
Bradnam 

Parish Council Support – does the PC 
support this project in principle Yes  

Have the parish council supported the 
group financially previously?  If yes 
when, what did the group purchase? 
and how much? 

Yes- £2,000  
 

Officer Summary    

 
Waterbeach and Landbeach Action for Youth (WAY) (https://www.waterbeachway.org.uk/) 
is an open access youth club for all young people aged 11 - 16 years. It has been running 
since 2002 and aims to develop young people's physical and emotional capacities so they may 
develop as individuals and valuable members of the community. Regular activities include 
sport and art & craft. Additional projects (which depend on funding) include music tuition, youth 
social action and pastoral support. 
 
Currently there are 136 members who primarily reside in the parishes of Waterbeach, 
Landbeach and Chittering with some also coming from Milton, Impington and Cottenham. 
Members do not pay any fees as they believe finances should not be a barrier to accessing 
youth support. 
 
The Club employs part time youth workers and is open two evenings a week during term – 
(Wed and Thurs 6-9pm). In addition to this, outreach youth work and additional activities 
throughout the school holidays are provided. There is disability access and staff are trained in 
supporting SEND children. 
 
WAY would like to run a cooking project once a week, for 48 weeks to teach their new year 7 
and 8 members how to make nutritious, low-cost meals whilst utilising food that has been 
donated by Fare Shares. This will contribute to maintaining good health and financial stability 
as well as ensuring they do not waste food. 
 
A cooking instructor will work with the children to plan and make the meals and produce simple 
instructions for them to take and try at home. Recipes will be flexible in order to make as much 

Page 27

https://www.waterbeachway.org.uk/


Appendix A 

use of the free food as possible and will teach the children to be more creative. Total costs are 
4,252.80 and £2,000 has been requested from the Community Chest:  
 

 Cooking Instructor @ £14 per hour x 3 hours x 48 weeks- £2,016 

 Additional Ingredients, PPE and cleaning equipment @ £15 per session x 48 sessions- 
£720 

 Volunteer Mileage @8 miles a week to get Fare Shares x 48 weeks x 45p per mile- 
£172.80 

 Rent of Hall-@3 hours a week x 48 weeks x £8.50 per hour- £1,224 

 Publicity flyers and admin time- £120 
 
Please note the hire of the hall will also cover the WAY sessions that are already running on 
the same day as the cooking sessions. Waterbeach Parish Council have contributed £2,000 
and Let’s Cook have funded £250. 
 
WAY also received £5,722 in January 2022 through the Council’s Children & Young People 
Grant Fund. This was for their ‘Creative Cooking’ programme which was open to children aged 
11-16. 
 
Cllr Judith Rippeth: 
Waterbeach and Landbeach Action for Youth are an organisation who have been supporting 
and nurturing young people in our community for over twenty years and continue to do 
fantastic work.  This particular grant request to fund a cooking project teaching young people 
to prepare nutritious meals from scratch, using ingredients that would otherwise go to waste, is 
exactly the sort of project we as a council should be supporting and especially at the current 
time.  This application has my full support, and I very much hope the members on the Grants 
Advisory Committee agree. 
 
Cllr Paul Bearpark: 
I also wholeheartedly support this application. Judith has provided a note of explanation which 
with which I concur. It seems to be a very worthwhile activity for young people providing them 
with cooking skills that sadly some children leave home without. 
 
Cllr Anna Bradnam: 
I am very happy to support Waterbeach Action for Youth and their application to the 
Community Chest Fund to support equipment needed to engage young people in cooking 
healthy food.  
 

Total Project Cost: 
£4,252.80 
 

 
Total Applied 

For: 
£2,000 
 

 

   

Reference GGRGHWKT    
Community 
Chest Grant 

 
Name of Organisation Social Enterprise East of England 

Organisation Type Social Enterprise 

CCVS Registered Yes 

Page 28



Appendix A 

Parish 
Cambourne particularly, but all Parishes in South 
Cambs 

Landowner N/A 

Project Type Startup costs 

Green option considered? N/A 

Documentation Status Safeguarding Yes Accounts Yes 

  Quote Yes 
Mission 

Statement Yes 

District Councillor Support 
 N/A 

Parish Council Support – does the PC 
support this project in principle N/A 

Have the parish council supported the 
group financially previously?  If yes 
when, what did the group purchase? 
and how much? No 

Officer Summary    

 
Social Enterprise East of England (SEEE) was established in 2005 as a regional network and 
support organisation for social enterprises. It is a partner organisation with Social Enterprise 
UK, and has 250 social enterprises members, with a wider community of approximately 2,000 
social enterprises and stakeholders. SEEE’s purpose is to promote, empower, connect, and 
grow their social enterprise sector. This is done by this by: 

 Promoting and facilitating a thriving social enterprise network to help individual enterprises 
be collectively more impactful. 

 Delivering projects and services to inform, inspire, upskill, and grow the sector 

 Linking their members with decision makers and funding opportunities to give them a voice 
and a chance to influence and prosper. 
 

SEEE’s board has a wealth of experience in the social enterprise sector with experienced 
consultants delivering their research, training, events and other activities. 
 
SEEE is undertaking a project to create a supportive network of social enterprises and other 
organisations and individuals with the aim of creating businesses and working together to 
address local social challenges. They are already collaborating with local organisations 
including CCVS, Hope CIC, Allia Impact Ltd, Cambridgeshire Acre to help them reach as many 
local organisations and people as possible.  
 
Their first engagement event was at Cambourne Community Centre (The Hub) on 14/11/23 
and showcased businesses that are helping communities and provide support to local 
residents in challenging times. This venue was chosen as one that is accessible to local 
people and to the local authorities. In addition to local flyers, the event was advertised online 
and through social media - taking advantage of the networks and reach of the organisations 
within the collaboration. 
Along with a marketplace of stalls offering services and products to South Cambridgeshire 
residents, Allia provided business advice if wanting to start a socially minded business, and 
advisors from Hope, Citizens Advice, British Gas, Clarion Housing were also present to 
provide advice. Officers from SCDC also attended the event to offer support. 
 

Page 29



Appendix A 

Total project costs are £4,950: 

 Staff costs for the event- £1,250 

 Catering £1,200 

 Business support costs in follow up engagement at £250 per day- £2,500. 
 

Community Chest grant funding of £2,000 is requested for 8 days of follow up engagement (for 
one staff member at £250/day). This engagement will be 1:1 support to help make their ideas 
happen and will include further engagement or support. 
 
A couple of examples that emerged from the Cambourne engagement event included: 
 

 A social enterprise that helps bring together vulnerable adults suggested they would like to 
add digital tools to enable them to extend their services and reach. The funding would allow 
SEEE to work with them, using their networks to find an appropriate partner or supplier, find 
funding etc. 

 Micro Care Enterprises (CCC were at the event)- SEEE would like to explore how these 
MCEs could come together within a village to support each other within a cooperative 
model. 

 Attendees identified possible collaboration and partnerships that the funding would enable 
SEEE to develop. 

 
As well as follow up meetings with their delivery partners, a feedback questionnaire has been 
sent to all attendees to help SEEE shape further engagement and resource building. 
 

Total Project Cost: £4,950  
Total Applied 

For: 
£2,000 

 

Page 30



Appendix B 

 

Guidance notes for Community Chest 

What is the Community Chest? 

The Community Chest is grant funding available to voluntary and community sector 

groups, charities and public sector bodies wishing to further improve quality of life in 

South Cambridgeshire. 

Who can apply?  

Applicants must: 

 Either be a non-profit group or organisation (including Community Interest 

Companies, CIC) based in South Cambridgeshire or benefiting South 

Cambridgeshire residents, OR be a public sector body with a demonstrable 

community focus (individuals and businesses are not eligible) 

 Be a Parish Council or Parish Meeting with fewer than 160 registered electors* 

Exemptions:  

1. Parish Councils of any size can apply for funding for costs involved in the 

undertaking, creation or refreshing of a Community-Led Plan (Parish Plan).  

This does not cover the costs of delivering projects emerging from a 

Community-led Plan (further details below) 

2. Parish Councils of any size can apply for biodiversity grants through this 

fund provided that they are not already in receipt of a grant from the 

Council’s Zero Carbon Communities grant fund 

3. Parish Councils of any size can apply for grants that provide a benefit to 

those affected by the cost-of-living crisis. 

 Have a written constitution or mission statement 

 Have an elected committee or representative steering group 

 Be able to provide an up to date copy of their accounts and any relevant 

protection policies 

If you have questions about these criteria, please contact us using the details below.    

If your organisation does not have a written constitution, mission statement and/or 

relevant protection policies please contact Cambridge Council for Voluntary Service for 

advice in meeting these requirements.  Please call 01223 464696 or email 

enquiries@cambridgecvs.org.uk  

*Please note:  

The Committee reserves the right to supersede this clause should the Parish Council or 

Parish Meeting show good cause, for example: 

Page 31

https://www.scambs.gov.uk/community-health-and-leisure/community-action/community-led-plan-toolkit
mailto:enquiries@cambridgecvs.org.uk


Appendix B 

 

a) The Parish Council or Parish Meeting have multiple settlements and the 

application pertains to any one of these which satisfies the 160-elector 

threshold or 

b) Registered electors are within 10% of the threshold.   

What must the funded project deliver? 

The community activity or project must: 

 Meet local need and leave a legacy for the community 

 Ensure equality of access 

 Help us deliver one or more of the following aims: 

o Promote healthy and active communities 

o Enable inclusive communities 

o Develop skills 

o Enhance the natural environment / a sustainable increase in local 

biodiversity 

o Deliver community engagement through the undertaking, creation or 

refreshing of a Community-led Plan 

o Provide a benefit to those affected by the cost-of-living crisis  

What can be funded? 

The activity or project should be one of the following: 

 Improvements to community buildings and spaces (i.e. village halls/pavilions/play 

areas etc) 

 Repairs to Historic Buildings/Monuments/Memorials 

 Equipment/Capital Purchase 

 Materials 

 ‘Start-up’ costs (may include training of staff/volunteers, hall hire and other 

revenue costs) 

 Costs involved with undertaking and creating or refreshing a Community-Led Plan 

(resulting projects will only receive funding where they would have been eligible 

for the Community Chest anyway).  

 Regarding cost-of-living projects, examples could include repair cafes where the 

local community can help in getting household items fixed for free; Timebanking 

projects (an exchange-based work trading system in which hours are the 

currency instead of money); lunch clubs (excludes the cost of food); Community 

support initiatives that provide food/ activities/ support services/ educate 

individuals on reducing food waste and cooking low-cost meals; setting 

up/running a group or charity where people can obtain free furniture, clothing, 

food, toys (Free, impartial legal guidance can be found on the Business 

Companion website) ; establishing or building the capacity of food hubs, food 

banks or community fridges; Capital costs needed to set up a warm hub 

Page 32

https://www.scambs.gov.uk/community-health-and-leisure/community-action/community-led-plan-toolkit
http://www.businesscompanion.info/
http://www.businesscompanion.info/


Appendix B 

 

(excluding warm hubs run by Cambridgeshire ACRE and any ongoing revenue 

costs, for example, heating costs) 

 Regarding biodiversity projects: the purchase and planting of native trees, 

hedgerows, wildflower meadows or other vegetation in appropriate and suitable 

locations and their ongoing maintenance; the construction and erection of bird 

and bat boxes in suitable locations; the creation or improvement of wildlife 

habitats (terrestrial or aquatic); the improvement of existing habitat.  

 

What cannot be funded? 

 On-going revenue costs or overheads (e.g. salaries, rent, advertising, promotional 

materials).  There are 2 exceptions to this. Exception 1 - The creation of 

Community-led Plans (revenue costs associated with the resulting projects will 

not be funded). Exception 2 - Cost-of-living projects (revenue costs cannot be 

used to cover the cost of food or the ongoing costs needed to run a warm hub, 

such as heating costs) 

 Projects that replace funding by other public sector bodies, including parish 

councils (e.g. youth services, highways) 

 Projects that have not received the support of all local District Councillor(s) for the 

ward/s concerned. Please ensure when contacting your local District Councillor(s) 

that they are all provided with full details of your project or a copy of your 

application form.  

 Costs associated with Neighbourhood Watch schemes 

 Costs associated with Community Speedwatch schemes or other traffic initiatives 

 Items that would only benefit ‘individuals’ and not the group (e.g. sports kits) 

 Non-native flower tubs 

How much can be applied for? 

The maximum award is £2,000 in any single financial year (April-March) and can be for 

100% of project costs unless the initiative is on parish council land, in which case a 50% 

financial contribution from the parish council is expected.  

If a group is awarded funding of less than £2,000 in any single financial year, an 

application can be made again within the same year for extra funding, providing the total 

allocation for that year does not exceed £2,000. 

If a group is awarded funding (up to and including £2,000) for any of the Community 

Chest themes in the explanatory table below in any single financial year, an application 

can be made again within the same year for (up to and including £2,000) for funding of 

other Community Chest themes. 

If a group is awarded funding (up to and including £2,000) for any of the Community 

Chest themes in the explanatory table below in any single financial year, applications 

Page 33

https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1


Appendix B 

 

can be made to any other Council funded grants within the same financial year, and vice 

versa. 

If there is high demand for funding, it may mean that the District Council is only able to 

make a contribution to your project.  The Council reserves the right to prioritise based on 

funding available, size of electorate, parish precept, indices of deprivation, number and 

type of applications received at any given time, priorities for the financial year and value 

for money.  Eligibility does not guarantee grant funding.   

When can groups apply? 

Subject to availability of funds, successful applicants will be funded after each Grant's 

Advisory Committee meeting. Applications will need to be received by the 7th day of any 

given month to be considered at the Grant's Advisory Committee meeting within the 

same month. This also applies at the end of each financial year - applications received 

after 7 March will be held over and considered within the new financial year (at April 

GAC), along with any held over from the March meeting itself.  

Additional funding has been allocated until October 2023 for the creation of Community-

led Plans, and until the end of March 2024 for cost-of-living crisis and biodiversity 

projects 

Preferred green options 

We will always ask applicants to seek a green option when purchasing items for their 

projects and this must be evidenced within the application. 

For example, a group may be looking to purchase a new minibus for their community.  

We would expect the group to evidence and include market research with their 

application demonstrating that a similar electrically powered vehicle has been 

considered.  However, if the electric alternative is not within price range, or would not be 

fit for purpose this must be explained before we would consider contributing towards an 

alternative 

Regarding biodiversity projects: planting of trees, hedgerows, wildflower meadows or 

other vegetation must be native. The construction and erection of bird and bat boxes 

must be in suitable location 

Natural Cambridgeshire have produced a useful Local Nature Recovery Toolkit which 

provides guidance, advice and support for Communities wanting to create nature 

recovery plans. 

What supporting documentation is required? 

 A copy of your organisation’s constitution or mission statement  

 A copy of your latest accounts (audited if available)  

 A quote for the community activity or project  

 A copy of your safeguarding policy 

Page 34

https://naturalcambridgeshire.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Doubling-Nature_Local-nature-recovery-toolkit.pdf


Appendix B 

 

 A copy of any correspondence from your local District Councillor(s) showing they 

are supportive of your project 

 A bank statement for the account you wish the funds to be paid into.  Statement 

must be dated within the last month.  

 Applications for funding towards the creation of Community-led Plans that are not 

made by the Parish Council itself should demonstrate that the Parish Council is 

supportive of the application. 

 For biodiversity projects please include: 

o A plan of the proposed work, including a project map and project outcomes 

o A timeline of the proposed work indicating mileposts and delivery dates 

o A brief management plan which describes how the project will be 

sustainable 

 For Community-led Plan applications, details should be supplied of any funding 

being allocated by the Parish Council to the creation of the Plan. 

 

In addition, the following will be required if relevant to the project: 

 Appropriate protection policies: children, young people, vulnerable adults 

 Public Rights of Way consent from landowner 

 Any other relevant material that would support your application 

 

How will the grant be paid? 

If successful, the applicant will receive the grant payment once we have received 

acknowledgement of the grant offer and acceptance of the terms and conditions. 

What are the conditions of funding? 

Groups that are awarded a grant will be expected to comply with the following conditions 

as a minimum: 

 Funding must only be used for the agreed purpose and spent within 12-months of 

the award being made (unless otherwise agreed in writing) 

 Any publicity must acknowledge the award provided 

 Unused grant must be returned to South Cambridgeshire District Council 

 An end of project evaluation must be submitted to South Cambridgeshire District 

Council within 3-months of project completion.  Details about this are available on 

the South Cambridgeshire District Council website 

 For biodiversity projects: the project must deliver a sustainable increase in local 

biodiversity, known as Biodiversity Net Gain. An increase means that you should 

be able to demonstrate positive change in biodiversity from pre-project conditions 

(for example, number of trees, number of square metres of land either created or 

improved). Sustainability means that it should persist over time and not be a 

temporary change. 

Page 35

https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1


Appendix B 

 

 Defibrillators: only the cost of defibrillators is funded through the Community 

Chest Grant scheme and the associated accessories and ongoing 

maintenance/training (the provision of which the Committee will want assurance) 

will be funded by the applicant. Defibrillators must be located where they can be 

accessed by the public at all times. Defib Finder provides up to date information 

on defibrillator locations across the UK, using data from The Circuit, the national 

defibrillator network. 

 Where infrastructure improvements are funded through the Scheme, applicants 

will be expected to demonstrate that the same organisation will be purchasing, 

owning and maintaining the equipment/items. 

Any award will not be means tested but applicants will be expected to have sought other 

means of local funding, especially from the parish council who may have funds available 

through planning developments (S106) or through its precept (S137). 

For further information please go to: 

 South Cambridgeshire District Council Community Chest webpage. 

 Community-Led Plan toolkit - South Cambs District Council (scambs.gov.uk) 

 Contact Details: community.chest@scambs.gov.uk  

 

Explanatory table 

The Community Chest is made up of 4 streams of funding, below: 

Community 

Chest funding 

Community 

Group (including 

CIC) 

Parish Council or 

Parish Meeting 

with fewer than 160 

registered electors 

Parish Council of 

any size 

Community 

Chest £58,000 

    

Biodiversity 

Grants £10,000 

    

Community-Led 

Plans £45,780 

   

Cost-Of-Living 

(£18,468.08) 

   

 

Page 36

https://www.defibfinder.uk/
https://www.scambs.gov.uk/communitychest
https://www.scambs.gov.uk/community-health-and-leisure/community-action/community-led-plan-toolkit/
mailto:community.chest@scambs.gov.uk


Notes to help those attending meetings in person at 

South Cambridgeshire Hall 

 

Notes to help those people visiting the South Cambridgeshire District Council 

offices – please also refer to the Covid-security measures relating to meetings 

in the Council Chamber which are on the website page for each relevant 

meeting.  

 

Members of the public wishing to view the meeting will be able to watch the 

livestream via the link which will be publicised before this meeting. 

 

Members of the public wishing to attend the meeting in person, please contact 

Democratic Services at democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk 

 

While we try to make sure that you stay safe when visiting South Cambridgeshire 

Hall, you also have a responsibility for your own safety, and that of others. 

 

Security 

When attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices you must report 

to Reception, sign in, and at all times wear the Visitor badge issued.  Before leaving 

the building, please sign out and return the Visitor badge to Reception. 

Public seating in meeting rooms is limited. For further details contact Democratic 

Services on 03450 450 500 or e-mail democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk 

 

Emergency and Evacuation 

In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound.  Leave the building using the 

nearest escape route; from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this is 

via the staircase just outside the door.  Go to the assembly point at the far side of the 

staff car park opposite the staff  entrance 

 Do not use the lifts to leave the building.  If you are unable to use stairs by 

yourself, the emergency staircase landings have fire refuge areas, which give 

mailto:democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk


protection for a minimum of 1.5 hours.  Press the alarm button and wait for 

help from Council fire wardens or the Fire and Rescue Service. 

 Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the Fire and Rescue 

Service confirms that it is safe to do so. 

 

First Aid 

If you feel unwell or need first aid, please alert a member of staff. 

 

Access for People with Disabilities 

We are committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to our 

agendas and minutes. We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have 

any specific needs, please let us know, and we will do what we can to help you.  The 

Council Chamber is accessible to wheelchair users.  Infra-red hearing assistance 

systems are available in the Council Chamber and viewing gallery. To use these, 

you must sit in sight of the infra-red transmitter and wear a ‘neck loop’, which can be 

used with a hearing aid switched to the ‘T’ position.  If your hearing aid does not 

have the ‘T’ position facility then earphones are also available and can be used 

independently. You can get both neck loops and earphones from Reception. 

 

Toilets 

Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts. These 

include facilities for disabled people. 

 

Recording of Business and Use of Mobile Phones 

We are open and transparent about how we make decisions. Public meetings are 

webcast and are also recorded, but we allow recording, filming and photography at 

Council, Cabinet and other meetings, which members of the public can attend, so 

long as proceedings at the meeting are not disrupted.  We also allow the use of 

social media during meetings to bring Council issues to the attention of a wider 

audience.  To minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, please switch 

your phone or other mobile device to silent / vibrate mode. 

 

Banners, Placards and similar items 



You are not allowed to bring into, or display at, any public meeting any banner, 

placard, poster or other similar item.  If you do so, the Chair will suspend the meeting 

until such items are removed. 

 

Disturbance by Public 

If a member of the public interrupts proceedings at a meeting, the Chair will warn the 

person concerned.  If they continue to interrupt, the Chair will order their removal 

from the meeting room.  If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting 

room open to the public, the Chair may call for that part to be cleared. The meeting 

will be suspended until order has been restored. 

 

Smoking 

Since 1 July 2008, South Cambridgeshire District Council has operated a Smoke 

Free Policy. No one can smoke at any time within the Council offices, or in the car 

park or other grounds forming part of those offices. 

 

Food and Drink 

Until the lifting of Covid restrictions, no vending machines are available. Bottled 

water is available for attendees at meetings. 

 



This page is left blank intentionally.


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	4 Grants to the Voluntary Sector - Service Support Grants: 6 Month Progress Report
	Appendix A SSG

	5 Community Chest: Funding Applications
	Appendix A Nov 2023
	Appendix B- Community Chest Guidance Nov 2023

	 Guidance For Visitors to South Cambridgeshire Hall

